
 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 

SPC 
 

TO BE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, DAME STREET, DUBLIN 2. 
 

ON TUESDAY 26 SEPTEMBER 2017 AT 3.30 PM 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
TUESDAY 26 SEPTEMBER 2017

  PAGE 
 
1   Minutes of meeting of 27 June 2017   

 
3 - 6 

2   Matters arising   
 

 

3   Historic Post Boxes   
 

7 - 12 

4   Place Making   
 

13 - 40 

5   Vacant Sites Register   
 

41 - 44 

6   Motions 
 
Motion 483 from Councillor Tina MacVeigh to the South Central Area 
Committee Meeting and referred to this SPC: 
 
“This Area Committee supports the occupation of Apollo House by housing 
activists and calls on Dublin City Council management to implement the following 
motion agreed at the City Council meeting on 10th November 2014: 
 
That this Council open an ‘Unused Properties Register.’  The owners of private 
properties that have been unused / empty for a period of more than six months 
(as per CSO Census 2011 and other official statistics) will be required to register 
their intention for use with Council.” 
 
 
Motion from Councillor Tina Mac Veigh to the South Central Area 
Committee and referred to this SPC; 
 
That, following the tragic fire at Grenfell in London earlier this week, a fire safety 
review of multiple unit buildings constructed between 2000 and 2008 be carried 
out in the Dublin South Central area, that said review will entail an audit of all 
buildings in the area constructed at this time and that random checks of those 
buildings then be conducted to ascertain all potential risks including the use of 
cladding of all types and determine whether there is any cause for concern; and 

 



 

that this motion be forwarded for inclusion on the July agenda for Housing SPC, 
Planning, International Relations & Property Development, Environment SPC and 
the Special Committee for Fire and Ambulance Services so that a similar exercise 
be agreed for the city of Dublin. 
 

7   A.O.B.   
 

 

 



1 
 

 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT SPC MEETING 

 
HELD ON TUESDAY 27 JUNE 2017 

 
 

 
 
1  Minutes of meeting of 28 February 2017 

 
Order: Agreed 
 

 

2  Matters arising 
 
The matters arising are on today’s Agenda. 
 

 

3  Members Planning Fees - Update 
 
Members welcomed that the issue of Members Planning Fees was being looked 
at.  It is likely to be September before it goes through the Oireachtas. 
Order: Report Noted 
 

 

4  Ireland 2040: National Planning Framework Plan Issues Paper - Chief 
Executive's Response 
 
Order: Response Noted 
 

 

5  Moore Street Consultative Group report: "Securing History" 
 

and 
 

Motion from Cllr Janice Boylan on the Agenda under Item 7 was taken along with 
Agenda Item 5 as both deal with similar topics: 
“This SPC calls on the Chief Executive to proceed as per the agreement of the 
City Council on 8 June 2015 to add 5 buildings identified in the Frank Myles 
Battlefield Report to the record of protected structures and to that end to proceed 
with completion of the assessment of these buildings without further delay. The 
SPC notes that: the making of an addition to the record of protected structures is 
a function of the elected members who are entitled to initiate the process 
notwithstanding the existence of a planning permission (ref. Chief Executives's 
Reply to Q.89, City Council meeting 12.6.17); elected members initiated said 
process on 8 June 2015 and it should not be further delayed. - Cllrs Mícheál Mac 
Donncha, John Lyons, Cieren Perry, Janice Boylan, Cathleen Cearney Boud, 
Gaye Fagan.” 
 
Discussion took place amongst the members regarding timeframe for 
implementation of the Moore Street Consultative Group Report. 
 
The A/City Planner advised that an Advisory/Oversight Group has been set up 

 

Page 3



2 
 

and we are hopeful that it will carry out the work it is charged with doing: “To 
secure consensus by the relevant players to a way forward for Moore Street, its 
lanes and interfaces.”  A critical part of this challenge will require engagement by 
the group with public bodies, developer interests, traders, voluntary groups and 
the receivers/owners.  The independent chair, Dr Tom Collins from Maynooth, will 
bring the report back to the Minister within 6 months. 
 
Regarding the Frank Myles Battlefield Report, the A/City Planner advised he 
didn’t think it appropriate to bring this Motion into the process until the above 
mentioned group has completed its work.  Whilst a number of the buildings in the 
Frank Myles Battlefield Report are already listed, some of them were not 
researched in full.  If we allow the process to follow its path, we can carry out a full 
independent survey of the inside of all these five buildings, bringing that survey 
back to the City Council who can then make an informed decision on the way 
forward. 
 
Questions were raised regarding the process for entering a building on the 
Record of Protected Structures.  The A/City Planner replied that a technical 
assessment has to be carried out under Section 51 of the Planning Act to assess 
the special interest of its architectural, historical, archaeological, artistic, cultural, 
scientific, social or technical nature.  Without having this information available, it’s 
leaving the City Council open to challenge in that it could be said that the full 
information wasn’t before the Council when they decided to initiate the process. 
 
The Chair suggested that the Motion be deferred. 
 
Order: Defer the Motion and review when more information is available 

 
6  Vacant Sites Register (10 largest sites with a planning history) 

 
Comments were made that the valuations seem to be quite small and reference 
was made to the unused State-owned sites.  Also, an update on these sites is 
needed each time this Committee meets. 
 
Helen McNamara, SEO, said that these are the top ten sites on the Vacant Lands 
Register.  Richard Shakespeare, ACE, said we just need to know what criteria the 
members want and we can use this to bring an updated version to each SPC. 
 
Discussion ensued in terms of size, value, development potential, planning 
history, etc.  Particular query was raised in relation to the Department of Justice 
site at Old Kilmainham Road, and it was requested that we find out why 
development has not progressed. 
 
The SEO responded that the legislation only provides for properties that are 
vacant for the previous 12 months going on the Register, regardless of 
permission.  We are talking with owners of privately owned sites explaining that 
permission needs to be used to avoid going on the Register.  Properties on the 
Register in January 2018 will be subject to the levy in January 2019, and the 
charge will roll on retrospectively each year. 
 
It was agreed that reports coming to the SPC should be based on valuation 
because that gives a combination of the size and prominence of the site.  If there 
is a specific site that someone wants, they can request that for a report on it 
comes to the SPC.  Reports should also be sent to the Area Committees. 
 
Order: Updated report for the next and future SPCs. 

Write to the Department of Justice re Old Kilmainham Road site 

 

Page 4



3 
 

asking why this site has not proceeded since permission was 
granted 3 years ago. 

 
7  Motions 

 
The Motion from Councillor Janice Boylan was dealt with under Agenda Item 5 
 
Motion 483 from Councillor Tina MacVeigh 
Councillor MacVeigh requested that this Motion be deferred to the next 
meeting. 
 

 

8  A.O.B. 
 
CPOs 
Councillor Carney-Boud requested this be kept on the Agenda for the next 
meeting to see if there is any movement re streamlining the process for CPOs 
from the Department.  Are we moving forward with CPOs as a policy now in the 
Council in relation to Derelict Sites? 
The SEO replied that we are looking to acquire another 10 properties, having 
already successfully acquired 7 properties.  The process is quite streamlined - we 
have a clearly defined process in place through acquisition by agreement, and 
failing that we go to compulsory acquisition.  We don’t tend to lose any of those 
cases.  Regarding compulsory purchase for redevelopment sites, we are starting 
one for Capel Street, Ryder’s Row.  Not as many of those on our books as we 
have on Derelict Sites, but we are looking at strategic sites in the city to 
compulsorily acquire if necessary.  Currently we are going through our Derelict 
Sites Register, targeting those that have residential potential to get them back into 
use as quickly as possible. 
 
Date of Next Meeting: Tuesday, 26 September 2017 
 

 

Councillor Andrew Montague 
Chairperson 
Tuesday 27 June 2017 
 
Attendance: 
 
Members: Members: Members: 
Andrew Montague (Chairperson)   
Kieran Binchy Janice Boylan Cathleen Carney Boud 
Aine Clancy Patrick Costello Daithi De Roiste 
Gaye Fagan Dermot Lacey Graeme McQueen 
Odran Reid Eilis Ryan Oznur Yucel-Finn 
 
Officers   
Paul Clegg Avril Feeney Niamh Lambert 
Helen McNamara Conor O'Hanlon John O'Hara 
Richard Shakespeare Joy Watts  
 
Apologies:    
John McGrane Valerin O'Shea  
 
Non-Members:    
Ardmhéara Micheal Mac Donncha   

Page 5



Page 6



 

 
An Roinn Pleanála agus Forbartha Maoine 

Oifigí na Cathrach, An Ché Adhmaid, 

Baile Átha Cliath 8 

Planning and Property Development Department 

Block 4, Floor 3, Civic Offices, Wood Quay, 
Dublin 8 

 
 

Planning and Property Development 
Strategic Policy Committee 

September 2017 
 

 

Historic Post Boxes in Dublin City 
 
 
Many postal pillar boxes in Dublin City date from the Victorian, Edwardian, and George V 
eras, adorned with the respective British monarch's monogram. These were retained 
following Irish Independence and repainted green, to which were added further new pillar 
boxes with SÉ (for Saorstát Éireann), a harp or the P & T logo.  The ‘An Post’ logo is 
used to adorn newer post boxes since 1984.  
 
In 2012, An Post was considering the removal of redundant, historic post boxes across 
the city.  Following consultation with City Council officials from the Planning and Property 
Development Departments Conservation Section, Public Realm Strategy Group and 
Roads Maintenance Services, an agreement was reached with An Post that all historic 
post boxes would remain in situ.  In addition, An Post provided a photographic survey 
and schedule of some 600 older post boxes in the city to the Planning Department; these 
are mainly the common, round shaped, cast iron, pillar boxes, installed from the Victorian 
era up to the 1980’s, but also some oval shaped, double aperture pillar boxes, and 
rectangular, cast iron wall boxes.   
 
That schedule and photographic survey has been used to compile an inventory of historic 
post boxes, including their typologies and details. A total of 302 such post boxes have 
been identified across the city, including the following:  
Victorian    50 
Edward VII (monogram) 43 
Edwardian – no marking    9 
George V (monogram)  10 
P&T (large lettering)   96 (including the C-Type, oval, double letter box pillar) 
    
above of which Wall Box 22  
 
Others of the historic and possibly historic post boxes identified have no obvious 
markings and require further investigation, while some 28 require examination to see if 
they have historical relevance at all.  The Planning Department has opened a file that 
includes the schedule and photographs referred to above.   
 
Many of these historic post boxes remain in use today and are well maintained.  There 
are others both pillar and wall boxes, that are no longer in use.  In this situation or where 
an historic pillar or wall box is to be decommissioned, the arrangements between the 
Planning and Economic Development Department and An Post provide that that the letter 

Page 7



 

box is sealed and continues to be maintained and painted by An Post (see photographs 1 
and 4 in Appendix 1).   
 
Historic post boxes are not included in the current Record of Protected Structures (RPS) 
of the Dublin City Development Plan 2016-2022; nor are they included in the Appendices 
to the City Development Plan.    
 
As part of the street furniture and historic surfaces that contribute to the special character 
of areas, historic post boxes are referred to and included in respective Architectural 
Conservation Areas (ACAs), provided under the Dublin City Development Plan.     
 
The survey of Dublin City by the National Inventory of Architectural Heritage (NIAH), has 
included historic post boxes in the survey and in the recommendations being made by 
the Minister for Culture, Heritage and the Gaeltacht, for the addition of structures 
(including street furniture, such as post boxes) to the City Council’s RPS.   
 
The Planning and Economic Development Department recently received Ministerial 
recommendations for further phases of the NIAH survey in the northwest, west, 
southwest and south central areas of the Inner City, adding to those received previously 
for the north Inner City.  The combined recommendations for additions received so far 
amount to a total, net (new) number of structures of about 1,000; including street 
furniture, etc. Potentially this would bring the City Council’s RPS up to some 9,500 
structures.     
 
The NIAH/Ministerial recommendations will be integrated into the survey of street 
furniture (and historic surface materials) as part of the Architectural Conservation Area 
character appraisal, for the priority 'ACAs' identified in the Dublin City Development Plan 
2016-2022 over the coming years; in accordance with section 11.1.4 The Strategic 
Approach.  This identifies 10 no., phase 1 priority areas for the preparation of ACAs in 
parts of the city centre.   
 
Next year, 2018, the Planning and Property Development Department  will start working 
towards the updating of the Record of Protected Structures in advance of the review of 
the City Development Plan due to commence in 2020. This will include a ‘working paper’ 
outlining the approach to be taken in the assessment of the NIAH/Ministerial 
recommendations, including historic post boxes and other street furniture.   

 
 
 
Paul Clegg_______ 
Executive Manager

Page 8



 

APPENDIX 1: PHOTOGRAPHS  
 
 
 

   
 
 
Photograph 1  
Pillar Box, VR (Victorian) Type, Disused, at St. Stephen’s Green East,  
near Department of Justice and Equality, Dublin 2.  
(source: The Irish Post Office www.irishpostalhistory.com)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9

http://www.irishpostalhistory.com/


 

          

 
 
Photograph 2             Photograph 3 
Pillar Box EVIIR (Edward VII) Type,          P&T C-Type, Oval, Double, Pillar Box,   
Molesworth Street, Dublin 2.           O’Connell Street Upper, Dublin 1.  

 

Page 10



 

 
 
Photograph 4  
Wall Box EVIIR (WT Allen Type) – Disused; at Anglesea Road, Dublin 4 
 
(Photographs 2-4; source: The Irish Post Office www.irishpostalhistory.com)  
 
 

Page 11

http://www.irishpostalhistory.com/




Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39





P
age 41



P
age 42



P
age 43




	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting of 27 June 2017
	Minutes

	3 Historic Post Boxes
	4 Place Making
	5 Vacant Sites Register



